
City of Hermiston
Parks and Recreation Department  

  R e g u la r  M ee t in g  
April 14, 2016 5:30pm 

 
 

 Also present: Carlisle Harrison, Mike Kay, 

Chairperson Cortaberria called the regular meeting to order at 5:30pm.  Present were board members J. Stahlberg, C. Harrison, M. Kay, 
S. Williams, R. Severs and Councilors Myers. Both board member L. Garcia and Councilor Primmer were unavailable. 

March 2016 Minutes 
Board members C. Harrison moved and J. Meyers seconded that minutes of the regular scheduled meeting of March 2016 be approved. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

Public Attendance 
A. Cooley, E. Laramore, J. Linton, K. May, L. Hernandez, E. Sandoval, M. Paul Albright, and F. Olvera. 

REPORTS 

A) Victory Square Improvements
Director Fetter announced the grant money of $140,000 to use for improvements at Victory Square Park has been used. With it the
Parks Department was able to remove the old non-functioning restroom and install a fully functional restroom, adding a new roof
to both picnic shelter and kiosk.  Mr. Fetter said the project turned out nicely and members were encouraged stop by and take a
look.

B) Skate Park
Director Fetter thanked the public attendees supporting a skate park for attending the meeting.
Mr. Fetter stated the city has purchased property directly across the street from the Police and Fire Department buildings. The
triangular shaped, ½ acre property is in close proximity of McKenzie Park and adjacent to the railroad tracks. The land is owned
and operated by the Union Pacific Railroad. Conversations have started with Union Pacific Railroad on a beautification lease on
their property that would expand the green space and extend the city’s ½ site which would allow for added parking space
accommodations, restrooms, and shaded areas. The Director offered different internet illustrations of skate parks which included
an assortment of elements, asking the audience with skateboard experience to weigh in with their own ideas. The conceptual
designs were modern and specialized complexes for both BMX and Skateboards users. The designs included smooth transitional
curves with half pipe and bowl elements with covered areas to allow year-round use.  Mr. Fetter stressed that whatever is built
needs to stand the test of time for the future since the nature of these facilities get outdated quickly.  He stated talking to the right
people and projecting into the future will be very important. Mr. Fetter stated it is impossible to restrict in a street park
skateboarders from BMX users so the facility built should accommodate both and users will they will learn to co-habitat.

The director assured the committee that the designs being presented were not in any way Hermiston’s Skate Park but he was
merely showing these as they contain elements he would like to pursue and include in Hermiston’s Skateboard design.

Director Fetter described how the process of building a skate park works.  He went on to explain how a Skate Park Design
Company is recruited, how each company will only build what they design, and how a design is based on the property perimeters
using a 3 dimensional computer generated park concept. Once the process is completed the contracted company begins to fashion
the design with elements wanted, needed, gathered by users and refined until it is complete.  Once an agreement is signed with a
Skate Design Company this is a commitment to have the same company design and build the entire project. Mr. Fetter stated he
has started conversations with Dreamland Design Company.

Page 1 

Staff: 
 Larry Fetter, Director

Dan Earp, Recreation Supervisor
 Gina Wicks, Department Assistant

Attendance: 
 Briana Cortaberria
 Jean Stahlberg
 Carlisle Harrison
 Steve Williams

Lisa Garcia
 Mike Kay
 Ryan Severs 
 Jackie Myers, Council Liaison

Doug Primmer, Council Liaison
 



The Director asked the audience to weigh in on what they liked in the illustrations and what other elements they would like to 
suggest.  It was suggested to build smooth transition around the park with the actual Street Park in the center and some stated 
bowls tend to be too big and harder to ride for the unexperienced skater. Everyone liked the idea of having covered areas to allow 
usage during cold and inclement weather. It was suggested googling Ed Benedict Community Park in Portland, which is very 
popular among skate enthusiasts, because of the street elements used. Other site locations to research was Kadlec Park in 
Washington and The Dallas Skate Park which was just completed by Dreamland. 
Mr. Fetter stated once a design company has been selected he would like the skater audience, along with other friends, to help in 
the design process. 

J. Meyers asked Director Fetter if there was any money in the budget to move the project forward.  He stated there was $35,000 to 
start the design process only so he will begin writing grants and searching for additional means to support and generate revenue 
for the project. 

M. Kay asked the Director if he knew if there had been any risk management liability in developing with these type of facilities.  
The director stated not that he was aware of, however, he is sitting in on a Webinar that will cover the subject and offered for Mike 
to sit on it too.  

C) Greenwood Park
Director shared some new design ideas for pocket parks adding he will continue to add more ideas then collaboratively with the
neighbors a design will be developed.  He stated there is $55,000 in the budget which will not go far when developing a park
project so he’ll be having conversations with city council about how to move forward. Neighbor to the park, J. Linton asked when
the park might be started and Mr. Fetter stated he hopes to start the design this spring.
Chairperson B. Cortaberria stated Greenwood Park was brought up in a recent Altrusa meeting and it is very probable the group
would provide some community involvement.

D) Harkenrider Center
A schematic plan for the dream Harkenrider Center was shown showing the Library, purposed parking lot configuration,
orientation of the building and different recreational features that could be added over time was shown.  The design was a dream
conceptual but now it’s been discovered there is a budget gap Mr. Fetter stated.

Wish Facility vs the Reality Facility
Mr. Fetter stated 1.6 million would be left from the 2 million grant after design, engineering, and permitting expenses and it would
be used up for top floor of the new center which means the parking lot improvements will need to be done differently.

Mr. Fetter stated the cost for first proposed parking lot would cost the remaining 1.6 million. With the expense of demolition if the
city can do the work in-house it would reduce the cost drastically. The new proposal is to keep the existing curve, providing
separation, adding more parking by tennis courts, re-designing parking lot entirely and keeping existing curve cuts trying to
salvageable as much existing as possible.

The modified plan for the center shows a larger great hall, with fireplace, reception, janitorial closet, restroom, staircase, elevator,
and 900 sq.ft kitchen which is larger then what exists currently. Director Fetter stated relocating the fire suppressions/fire risers
combined with mechanical/janitorial closer to water main area will allow for cost saving. The staircase and elevator will be
relocated because there would be less excavating which will help reduce cost along with reducing the need to import or export
material.   Under the new plan, the basement would be smaller - 4000 sq. ft. instead of a full basement which would have been 6-
8,000 sq. ft. Councilor Meyers asked how much smaller the upper level would be under this new plan. Mr. Fetter stated the new
design will be around 7,000 sq. ft. compared to the 8,000 previously discussed. Mr. Fetter was not sure what monetary value the
new design proposal would make to the budget.

Councilor Meyers asked for the senior’s reaction to the smaller kitchen/facility. Mike Kay commented saying he heard seniors
liking that there was a place for their pool table, liked that great room got bigger, wasn’t excited about fireplace getting moved
back, kitchen was ok because of the concept of a shared facility.

Mr. Kay announced HSD is currently in negotiations with EOTEC to extend the lease on the fairgrounds property until June 1st,
2017.  This will allow an opportunity for seniors to stay at the currently facility longer and allows Hermiston School District to
offer the high school and college rodeo’s and activities that would be displaced.
Mr. Kay complimented Director Fetter for the work and effort he has done in the challenging process of providing more room and
room not committed to solid walls with open space for activities they would like to offer.  Mr. Fetter thanked Mr. Kay and stated
the occupancy of 250 people dining hall has increased slightly since the configuration has been changed.  Member S. Williams
asked if there is storage for tables and chairs which Mr. Fetter stated yes, enough for 250 people.

Page 2 



Event Information: 
• Recycle Event: 2015 brought in 60 tons of material, this year, the event brought in 83 tons with requests to add other

recyclable items. The Director said it was very well organized with excellent volunteer help.  This will become an annual
spring event.

• May 1st, Cinco de Mayo will take place on 2nd St with carnival being setup behind the Library.
• May 7th, the E.O. Art Festival event will have a similar layout as last year with the exception of the carnival will be set

up on 2nd and Ridgeway behind the Library with road closure.
• Highlights of Spring/Summer Programs

Board member M. Kay recognized and thanked the Parks and Recreation department in establishing a working
relationship with the United States Tennis Association by offering summer lessons/camps throughout the summer for
youth and families.

Mr. Fetter stated at the next parks meeting on May 12th  he will focus on updating the board with information surrounding the 
Hermiston Family Aquatic Center;  bids, refurbishing cracked - leaking areas and updating water systems with solar and heat 
pumps.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:25pm 
Next meeting May 5th, 2016 

Page 3 




